

EXHIBIT B

BYLAWS OF

TIDES OWNERS ASSOCIATION

INDEX TO BYLAWS

Article I * Plan of Apartment Ownership

- Section 1. Unit Ownership
- Section 2. By-Laws Applicability
- Section 3. Personal Application
- Section 4. Definitions

Article II * General Provisions

- Section 1. Identification
- Section 2. Corporate Purpose
- Section 3. Fiscal Year
- Section 4. Seal
- Section 5. Contracts
- Section 6. Members, Qualifications

Article III * Voting, Majority of Owners, Quorum, Proxies

- Section 1. Voting
- Section 2. Majority of Owners
- Section 3. Quorum
- Section 4. Proxies
- Section 5. Designation of Voting Representative

Article IV * Administration; Members

- Section 1. Association Responsibilities
- Section 2. Place of Meetings
- Section 3. Annual Meetings
- Section 4. Special Meetings
- Section 5. Notice of Meetings
- Section 6. Adjourned Meetings
- Section 7. Order of Business

Article V * Board of Directors

- Section 1. Number and Qualifications
- Section 2. Powers and Duties
- Section 3. Other Duties
- Section 4. Election of Directors
- Section 5. Removal of Directors
- Section 6. Term of Directors
- Section 7. Organizational Meetings
- Section 8. Regular Meetings of Directors
- Section 9. Special Meetings of Directors
- Section 10. Waiver of Notice of Directors' Meetings

- Section 11. Quorum of Directors
- Section 12. Adjourned Meetings of Directors
- Section 13. Joinder in Meeting by Approval of Minutes
- Section 14. Presiding Officer at Directors' Meetings
- Section 15. Order of Business at Directors' Meetings
- Section 16. Directors' Fees

Article VI * Officers

- Section 1. Executive Officers
- Section 2. President
- Section 3. Vice President
- Section 4. Secretary
- Section 5. Treasurer
- Section 6. Compensation

Article VII * Fiscal Management

- Section 1. Fiscal Management
- Section 2. Accounts
- Section 3. Budget
- Section 4. Assessments
- Section 5. Acceleration of Assessment Installments Upon Default
- Section 6. Assessments for Emergencies
- Section 7. Excess of Assessments
- Section 8. Bank Depository
- Section 9. Audit
- Section 10. Fidelity Bonds
- Section 11. Notice of Unpaid Assessments
- Section 12. Inspection of Books
- Section 13. Notices

Article VIII * Parliamentary Rules**Article IX * Obligations of Owners**

- Section 1. Maintenance and Repair
- Section 2. Use of Family Units * Internal Changes
- Section 3. Person's Occupying a Unit By, Under or Through a Unit Owner
- Section 4. Right of Entry

Article X * Amendments

Attachment

ARTICLE I

1300 1453

PLAN OF APARTMENT OWNERSHIP

Section 1. Unit Ownership: The project located at 1008 Canal Drive, Town of Carolina Beach, County of New Hanover, State of North Carolina, known as TIDES, PHASE I, is submitted to the provisions of Chapter 47A, Article 1 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, known as the "Unit Ownership Act", as the same may from time to time be amended, herein sometimes referred to as the "Act".

Section 2. Bylaws Applicability: The provisions of these Bylaws are applicable to the project known as TIDES, PHASE I, and all future phases, if any, and the terms and provisions hereof are expressly subject to the terms, provisions and conditions contained in the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration of Condominium and/or supplemental Declarations of Condominium which will be recorded in the public records of New Hanover County, North Carolina.

The term "Project" is used herein and shall include land, building, improvements, and the entire condominium enterprise of TIDES, PHASE I, and all future phases, if any.

Section 3. Personal Application: All present or future unit owners, tenants of such owners, employees of owners and tenants, or any other persons that may in any manner use the property or any part thereof, are subject to the provisions of these Bylaws and to the Declaration, as from time to time amended.

The mere acquisition, rental or use of any of the units of the project, or mere fact of occupancy of any of the units, will signify that these Bylaws and the Declaration and all associated agreements, administrative rules and regulations, supplemental rules and regulations, agreements, decisions and determinations of the Association, Articles of Incorporation of the Association and unit deeds, are accepted and ratified, and will be complied with.

- Section 4. Definitions: The definitions of words and phrases used in these Bylaws shall be the same as the context hereof permits, as the definitions set forth in the Act in effect at the time these Bylaws are adopted. Where the context permits, an "owner" of a condominium unit may be synonymous with a "member" of the Association.

ARTICLE II

GENERAL PROVISIONS

- Section 1. Identification: These are the Bylaws of the TIDES OWNERS ASSOCIATION, hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Association", a nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State of North Carolina, whose Articles of Incorporation were duly filed in the office of the North Carolina Secretary of State in the year 1984.
- Section 2. Corporate Purpose: The Association has been organized for the purpose of administering six (6) condominium units pursuant to the Act, and such other units as may be built in future phases of the project.
- Section 3. Fiscal Year: The fiscal year of the Association will be the calendar year.
- Section 4. Seal: The corporate seal of the Association shall consist of two concentric circles between which is the name of the Association and in the center of which is inscribed "Corporate Seal" and the date and place of incorporation; and such seal, as impressed on the margin hereof, is hereby adopted as the corporate seal of the Corporation. The Board of Directors shall procure a seal which complies with this section of the Bylaws.
- Section 5. Contracts: Contracts of the Association shall be entered into, title to property shall be acquired, held, dealt in, and disposed of, bank accounts shall be opened, and suit shall be brought and defended by the Board of Directors or officers thereof on behalf of and as agents for the unit owners in the manner specified by the "Act", the Declaration, these Bylaws and the laws of the State of North Carolina.

Section 6. Members, Qualifications: The members of the Association shall consist of the record owners of all Condominium units in TIDES, PHASE I, and all future phases. If the ownership of a condominium unit is held by more than one person or entity, the several owners shall be considered one with reference to the limitation in the number of members in the Association.

ARTICLE III

VOTING, MAJORITY OF OWNERS, QUORUM, PROXIES

Section 1. Voting: Voting strength shall be computed on a percentage basis and converted into whole or fractional numerical votes. The percentage of the vote to which each member is entitled shall be the percentage in which the owner or owners of the unit in question are entitled to an undivided interest in the common areas and facilities as assigned to each condominium unit in the Declaration and/or supplemental Declarations of Condominium. In addition to the voting power referred to in the preceding sentence, during the period of construction of the condominium units and until 75% of such units have been sold and deeded to purchasers, or withdrawn as units for sale by the Developer (T & O Investments, a North Carolina General Partnership), or until the Developer elects in writing to terminate its control of the project, whichever occurs earlier, but in any event, not later than three (3) years from the date of the initial recording of the Declaration, the Developer shall be entitled to three times the aggregate voting strength of all members, plus one percent (1%), which Developer voting right is apart from that derived from unit ownership itself. For purposes of the preceding sentence, any unit as to which the Developer ceases to make good faith efforts to sell shall be deemed withdrawn as a unit for sale. Unless otherwise specified, or required elsewhere in these Bylaws, in the Declaration or in the Act, decisions of the Association shall be carried by vote of a majority of votes properly present and voting at a duly called meeting at which a quorum is present.

- Section 2. Majority of Owners: As used in these Bylaws the term "majority" of owners shall mean those members (including the Developer as such while the Developer has voting power under the preceding paragraph) holding fifty-one percent (51%) of the aggregate of votes held by those entitled to vote at meetings of the Association membership.
- Section 3. Quorum: Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the presence in person or by proxy of a "majority" of members as defined in the preceding paragraph of these Articles shall constitute a quorum.
- Section 4. Proxies: Votes may be cast in person or by proxy. Proxies must be filed with the Secretary before the appointed time of each meeting. A proxy may be made by any person entitled to vote and shall be valid only for the particular meeting designated in the proxy and must be filed with the Secretary before the appointed time of the meeting or any adjournment of the meeting.
- Section 5. Designation of Voting Representative: If a unit is owned by an individual, the right to vote shall be established by the record title to the unit. If a unit is owned by more than one person, or is under lease, the person entitled to cast the vote for the unit shall be designated by a certificate signed by all of the record owners of the unit and filed with the Secretary of the Association. If a unit is owned by a corporation, the person entitled to cast the vote for the unit shall be designated by a certificate signed by the President or Vice President and attested by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the corporation and filed with the Secretary of the Association. If owned by a partnership, whether general or limited, or a joint venture, the certificate designating voting member shall be signed by all general partners or joint venturers as the case may be. Such certificate shall be valid until revoked or until superseded by a subsequent certificate or until a change in ownership of the unit concerned. A certificate designating the person entitled to cast the vote of a unit may be revoked by any owner of a unit. If a required certificate is not on file, the vote of the affected unit shall not be considered in determining the requirement for a quorum nor for any other purpose.

ADMINISTRATION; MEMBERS

- Section 1. Association Responsibilities: The owners of the units as members of the Association will have the responsibility of administering the condominium project, approving the annual budget, establishing and collecting monthly assessments, and arranging for the management of the project pursuant to an agreement containing provisions relating to the duties, obligations, removal, and compensation of the management agent.
- Section 2. Place of Meeting: Meetings of the Association shall be held at the principal office of the project or such other suitable place convenient to the owners as may be designated by the Board of Directors.
- Section 3. Annual Meetings: The Annual Meeting of the membership shall be held at 7:00 p.m. on the third Friday in January of each year for the purpose of electing directors and transacting any and all of the business authorized to be transacted by the members; provided, however, if that day is a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held at the same hour on the next normal business day that is not a holiday. If such meeting is not held as scheduled, a substitute annual meeting shall be held on notice as required for special meetings.
- Section 4. Special Meetings: It shall be the duty of the President to call a special meeting of the owners as directed by resolution of the Board of Directors or on a petition signed by a majority of members and having been presented to the Secretary, or at the request of the Federal Housing Commissioner or his duly authorized representative. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice unless a quorum is present and by consent of four-fifths (4/5) of the vote present, either in person or by proxy.
- Section 5. Notice of Meetings: It shall be the duty of the Secretary to mail a notice of each annual or special meeting, stating the purpose thereof as well as the time and place of the meeting, to each owner of record at the address of record with the Secretary, at least ten (10) but not more than twenty-one

(21) days prior to such meeting. The mailing of notice in the manner provided in this section shall be considered notice served. Notices of all meetings shall be made to the director of the local insuring office of the Federal Housing Administration.

Section 6. Adjourned Meetings: If any meeting of owners cannot be organized because a quorum has not attended, the owners who are present either in person or proxy may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present.

Section 7. Order of Business: The order of business at all Association meetings shall be as follows:

- (a) Election of Chairman of the meeting;
- (b) Calling of the roll and certifying of proxies;
- (c) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notices;
- (d) Reading of minutes of preceding meeting;
- (e) Reports of Officers;
- (f) Report of Federal Housing Administration Representative, if present;
- (g) Reports of committees;
- (h) Election of inspectors of election;
- (i) Election of Directors;
- (j) Unfinished business;
- (k) New business;
- (l) Adjournment.

ARTICLE V

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Number and Qualification: The Association's affairs shall be governed by a Board of Directors composed of three or five persons, all of whom must be owners of units in the project, the exact number to be determined at the time of election, except Directors nominated by the Developer during the period of time Developer is entitled to the voting rights provided for in Article III, Section 1 of these Bylaws.

Section 2. Powers and Duties: The Board of Directors shall have the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the Association's affairs and may do all such acts and things as are by law or by these Bylaws or the Declaration directed to be exercised and done by the owners. The powers and duties of the Association existing under the Act, the

Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation of the Association and these Bylaws shall be exercised exclusively by the Board of Directors, its agents, contractors or employees, subject only to approval by the membership when specifically required.

Section 3. Other Duties: In addition to other duties imposed by these Bylaws or by resolutions of the Association, the Board of Directors shall be responsible for the following:

(a) Assessments. The Board shall make and collect assessments against members to defray the costs and expenses of the condominium property. The Board may allocate or apportion to particular unit buildings such costs and expenses as may be appropriate; and may make special assessments consistent with such allocation or apportionment.

(b) Disbursements. The Board shall use the proceeds of assessments in the exercise of its powers and duties.

(c) Maintenance. The Board shall maintain, repair, replace and operate the condominium property and make repairs and replacements to facilities as necessary.

(d) Insurance. The Board shall purchase insurance upon the condominium properties and insurance for the protection of the Association and its members, as more particularly set forth in the Declaration.

(e) Reconstruction and Improvements. The Board shall reconstruct improvements after casualty and further improve the condominium properties as more particularly set forth in the Declaration.

(f) Rules and Regulations. The Board shall make and amend reasonable rules and regulations respecting the use of the property in the condominium. Rules and regulations of the Association, until amended, shall be as set forth in the schedule attached hereto.

(g) Management Contract. The Board may contract for the management of the project and according to the terms set forth in the Declaration of Condominium may delegate to the manager all power and duties of the

Association except such as are specifically required by the Declaration of Condominium or these Bylaws to have approval of the Board of Directors or the membership of the Association or the owners within a particular condominium property. Compensation for the manager, whether an individual, management company or any other like entity shall be established by the Board.

(h) Enforcement. The Board shall enforce by legal means available the provisions of the Unit Ownership Act, the Declaration of Condominium, the Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws and regulations for the use of the property in the condominium. The Association shall be entitled to all expenses and costs of enforcement of such provisions against any unit owner, including a reasonable attorney's fee, costs of collection and court costs, when applicable.

(i) Purchase of Units. The Board may not purchase units in the condominium.

Section 4. Election of Directors: The election of Directors shall be conducted in the following manner:

(a) Election of directors shall be held at the annual membership meeting.

(b) A nominating committee of three (3) members shall be appointed by the Board of Directors not less than 30 days prior to the annual members' meeting. The committee shall nominate one person for each director then serving. Nominations for additional directorships created at the meeting shall be made from the floor and other nominations may be made from the floor.

(c) The election shall be by written ballot (unless dispensed with by unanimous consent) and by a plurality of the vote cast, each person voting being entitled to cast his votes for each of as many nominees as there are vacancies to be filled.

(d) Except as to vacancies provided by removal of Directors by members, vacancies in the Board of Directors occurring between annual meetings of members shall be filled by the remaining Directors.

- Section 5. Removal of Directors: Any Director may be removed by concurrence of two-thirds (2/3) of the votes of the entire membership at a special meeting of the members called for that purpose. The vacancy in the Board of Directors so created shall be filled by the members of the Association at the same meeting; provided, however, until the initial sale or withdrawal from offer of sale of seventy-five percent (75%) of the units in TIDES, all phases, by the Developer or until three (3) years after the recording of the initial Declaration, or until the Developer elects to terminate its control of the Association, whichever shall first occur, the first Directors of the Association shall continue to serve, and in the event of vacancies during such initial stage, the remaining Directors shall fill the said vacancies.
- Section 6. Term of Directors: The term of each Directors' service shall extend until the second next annual meeting of the members and subsequently until his successor is duly elected and qualified or until he is removed in the manner elsewhere provided. Terms shall be staggered to the extent possible and for a duration of two (2) years, except when staggering requires a shorter or longer term.
- Section 7. Organizational Meeting: The organization meeting of a newly-elected Board of Directors shall be held immediately after their election or at such place and time as shall be fixed by the Directors at the meeting at which they were elected, and no further notice of the organizational meeting shall be necessary.
- Section 8. Regular Meetings of Directors: The regular meeting of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined, from time to time, by a majority of the Directors. Notice of regular meetings shall be given to each Director personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, at least five (5) days prior to the day named for such meeting.
- Section 9. Special Meetings of Directors: Special meetings of the Directors may be called by the President or Chairman of the Board of Directors if such officer has been elected and must be called by the Secretary at the

written request of at least two-fifths (2/5) of the Directors. Not less than five days notice of the meeting shall be given personally or by mail, telephone, or telegraph, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting.

- Section 10. Waiver of Notice of Directors' Meetings: Any Director may waive notice of a meeting before or after the meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of notice.
- Section 11. Quorum of Directors: A quorum at Directors' meetings shall consist of a majority of the entire Board of Directors. The acts approved by a majority of those present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the acts of the Board of Directors, except when approval by a greater number of Directors is required by the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.
- Section 12. Adjourned Meetings of Directors: If, at any meeting of the Board of Directors, there be less than a quorum present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present. At any adjourned meeting any business that might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice.
- Section 13. Joinder in Meeting by Approval of Minutes: The joinder of a Director in the action of a meeting by signing and concurring of the minutes of that meeting shall constitute the presence of such Director for the purpose of determining a quorum.
- Section 14. Presiding Officer at Directors' Meetings: The presiding officer of a Directors' meeting shall be the Chairman of the Board if such an officer has been elected; and if none, the President shall preside. In the absence of the presiding officer the Directors present shall designate one of their number to preside.
- Section 15. Order of Business at Directors' Meetings: The order of business at Directors' meetings shall be:

1300 1463

- (a) Calling of roll;
- (b) Proof of due notice of meeting;
- (c) Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes;
- (d) Reports of officers and committees;
- (e) Election of officers;
- (f) Unfinished business;
- (g) New business;
- (h) Adjournment.

Section 16. Directors' Fees: Directors' fees, if any, shall be determined by the members.

ARTICLE VI

OFFICERS

Section 1. Executive Officers: The executive officers of the Association shall be a President, who shall be a director, one or more Vice Presidents, who shall be directors, a Treasurer, and a Secretary, all of whom shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors and who may be peremptorily removed by vote of the directors at any meeting with or without cause. Any person may hold two or more offices except that the President shall not be also the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary. The Board of Directors from time to time shall elect such other officers and designate their powers and duties as the Board shall find to be required to manage the affairs of the Association. The Board of Directors shall have the power to elect an Assistant Secretary who shall perform the duties of the Secretary when the Secretary is absent.

Section 2. President: The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. He shall have all of the powers and duties usually vested in the office of President of any association, including but not limited to the power to appoint committees from among the members from time to time, as he in his discretion may determine appropriate, and to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association.

Section 3. Vice President: The Vice President, or the Senior Vice President if there be more than one Vice President, in the absence or disability of the President, shall exercise the powers of the President and such other

powers and perform such other duties as shall be prescribed by the Directors. If the Board of Directors shall elect more than one Vice President, the Board shall designate the order of seniority of such Vice Presidents.

Section 4. Secretary: The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all proceedings of the Directors and the members. He shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices to the members and directors and other notices required by law. He shall have custody of the seal of the Association and affix it to instruments requiring a seal when duly authorized and signed. He shall keep the records of the Association, except those of the Treasurer, and shall perform all other duties incident to the office of Secretary of an Association and as may be required by the Directors or the President. The Assistant Secretary shall perform the duties of the Secretary when the Secretary is absent.

Section 5. Treasurer: The Treasurer shall have custody of all property of the Association, including funds, securities and evidences of indebtedness. He shall keep the books of the Association in accordance with law and with good accounting practices; and he shall perform all other duties incident to the office of Treasurer.

Section 6. Compensation: The compensation of all officers, agents and employees of the Association shall be fixed by the Directors; provided that the Board of Directors may delegate authority to fix the compensation of employees to the executive officers. The provision that directors' fees shall be determined by the members shall not apply to the Association employing a director as an employee of the Association nor apply to the Association contracting with a director for the management of the condominium.

ARTICLE VII

FISCAL MANAGEMENT

Section 1. Fiscal Management: The provisions for fiscal management of the Association set forth in the Declaration and Articles of Incorporation shall be supplemented by the following sections.

1300 1465

Section 2. Accounts: The receipts and expenditures of the Association shall be credited and charged to accounts under the following classifications as shall be appropriate, all of which expenditures shall be common expenses:

(a) "Current expenses," which include all receipts and expenditures within the year for which the budget is made including a reasonable allowance for contingencies and working funds, (for the initial months of the project's operation equal to at least two months' assessment for each unit collected and transferred to the Association at the time of the closing of the initial sale of each unit and maintained in an account for the use and benefit of the Association), except expenditures chargeable to reserves, to additional improvements or to resort operation. The balance of this fund at the end of each year shall be applied to reduce the assessments for current expenses for the succeeding year.

(b) "Reserve for deferred maintenance," which shall include funds for maintenance items that occur less frequently than annually. This reserve shall be maintained out of regular assessments for common expenses and the amounts to be collected for this reserve shall be adequate in the light of past experience and anticipated needs as established in good faith from time to time by the Board of Directors.

(c) "Reserve for replacement," which shall include funds for repair or replacement required because of damage, depreciation or obsolescence. This reserve shall be maintained out of regular assessments for common expenses and the amounts to be collected for his reserve shall be adequate in the light of past experience and the anticipated needs as established in good faith from time to time by the Board of Directors.

(d) "Betterments," which shall include the funds to be used for capital expenditures for additional improvements or additional personal property that will be part of the common elements.

Section 3. Budget: The Board of Directors shall adopt a budget for each calendar year that shall

include the estimated funds required to defray the common expenses and to provide and maintain funds for the foregoing accounts and reserves according to good accounting practices as follows:

(a) "Current expenses," the amount of which shall not exceed by 15% the amount budgeted for this account for the prior year.

(b) "Reserve for deferred maintenance," the amount of which shall not exceed by 10% the amount budgeted for this account for the prior year.

(c) "Reserve for replacement," the amount of which shall not exceed by 10% the amount budgeted for the prior year.

The amount for each budgeted item may be increased over the foregoing limitations when approved by unit owners entitled to cast not less than 75% of the votes of the entire membership of the Association.

Copies of the budget and proposed assessment shall be transmitted to each member at least thirty (30) days preceding the Association fiscal year for which said budget has been made. If the budget is subsequently amended, a copy of the amended budget shall be furnished to each member.

Section 4. Assessments: Assessments against the unit owners for their shares of the items of common expense shall be made for the fiscal year at least 30 days preceding the beginning of such fiscal year. Such assessment shall be due in twelve equal payments on the first day of each month of the said fiscal year. If an annual assessment is not made as required, an assessment shall be presumed to have been made in the amount of the last prior assessment and monthly installments on such assessments shall be due upon each installment payment date until changed by an amended assessment. Should the annual assessment prove to be insufficient, the budget and assessments may be amended at any time by the Board of Directors if the accounts of the amended budget do not exceed the limitations for that year. Any account or expense that does exceed such limitations shall be subject to the approval of the membership of the Association as previously

required in these Bylaws. The unpaid assessment for the remaining portion of the calendar year for which the amended assessment is made shall be due upon the date of the assessment. The amended assessment shall be paid in equal payments on the payment dates of the annual assessment during the remainder of that calendar year. The first assessment for the initial year of operation shall be determined by the Board of Directors of the Association.

At the time title is conveyed to an owner from the Developer, each owner shall contribute to the Association as a "current expense" an amount equal to a two (2) month's Assessment. Such funds shall constitute working capital and shall be used solely for initial operating and capital expenses of the Association.

- Section 5. Acceleration of Assessment Installments Upon Default: If a unit owner shall be in default in the payment of an installment upon an assessment, the Board of Directors, may accelerate the remaining installments of the assessment upon notice to the unit owner, and then the unpaid balance of the assessment shall become due upon the date stated in the notice, but not less than ten days after delivery of the notice to the unit owner, or not less than 20 days after the mailing of such notice to him by registered or certified mail to the latest address of such owner made available to the Association secretary or management in writing by the owner, whichever shall first occur.
- Section 6. Assessments for Emergencies: Assessments for common expenses of emergencies that cannot be paid from annual assessments for common expenses shall be made only after notice of the need for such is given to the unit owners. After such notice and upon approval in writing by persons entitled to cast more than one-half of the votes of the unit owners, the assessment shall become effective, and it shall be due after 30 days notice in such manner as the Board of Directors of the Association may require in the notice of assessment.
- Section 7. Excess of Assessments: In any year in which there is an excess of assessments received over amounts actually used or payable for the

purposes described in these bylaws and in the Declaration, such excess shall, unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors of the Association, be deposited in a capital reserve account for use in replacement, repair or maintenance of the common areas and facilities of the Association.

- Section 8. Bank Depository: The depository of monies of the Association shall be such banks or banks as shall be designated from time to time by the directors. Withdrawal of monies from such accounts shall be only by such persons as are authorized by the directors.
- Section 9. Audit: An outside audit of the accounts of the Association shall be made annually, and a copy of the audit report shall be furnished to each member and any mortgagee on request not later than May 1 of the year following the year for which the audit is made.
- Section 10. Fidelity Bonds: Fidelity bonds shall be required by the Board of Directors from all persons handling or responsible for Association funds. The amount of such bonds shall be determined by the directors, but shall be not less than \$10,000. The premiums of such bonds shall be paid by the Association.
- Section 11. Notice of Unpaid Assessments: The Association shall at the request of a mortgagee of a unit or a party of his or her representatives seeking to acquire any interest in a unit, report whether any unpaid assessments are due from the owner of such unit, and, if so, how much and for what periods of time.
- Section 12. Inspection of Books: Any owner and any institutional holder of a first mortgage or deed of trust on a unit will, upon request, be entitled to inspect the books and records of the written notice of all meetings of the Association and shall be entitled, upon request, to designate a representative to attend all such meetings.
- Section 13. The Association, upon written request from any mortgagee, insurer or guarantor will be entitled to timely written notice of:

(a) Any condemnation or casualty loss that effects a material portion of the project or the units carrying its mortgage.

(b) Any sixty (60) day delinquency in the payment of assessments or charges owed by the owner of any unit on which said lender holds the mortgage.

(c) A lapse, cancellation, or material modification of any insurance policy or fidelity bond maintained by the OWNERS ASSOCIATION.

(d) Any proposed action that requires the consent of a specified percentage of mortgage holders.

ARTICLE VIII

PARLIAMENTARY

Roberts' Rules of Order (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of the Association meetings when not in conflict with the Declaration of Condominium, Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.

ARTICLE IX

OBLIGATIONS OF THE OWNERS

Section 1. Maintenance and Repair

(a) Every owner must perform promptly all maintenance and repair work within his own unit which, if omitted, would affect the project in its entirety or in a part belonging in whole or in part to other owners.

(b) All the repairs of internal installments of the unit such as water, light, gas, power, sewage, telephones, air conditioners, sanitary installations, doors, windows, lamps, and all other accessories belonging or pertaining to the individual unit shall be at the owner's expense.

(c) An owner shall reimburse the Association for any expenditures incurred in repairing or replacing any part of the common areas and facilities damaged through his fault or that of his employees, servants, guests and invitees.

Section 2.

Use of Family Units - Internal Changes:

(a) All units shall be utilized for residential purposes only.

(b) An owner shall not make structural modifications or alterations in his unit or installations located therein without previously notifying the Association in writing and in detail of the proposed work, through the management agent, if any, or president of the Board of Directors if no management agent is employed. The Association shall have the obligation to answer within the stipulated time shall mean that there is no objection to the proposed modification or alteration.

Section 3.

Persons Occupying a Unit By, Under or Through a Unit Owner:

All persons occupying any condominium unit, whether under a rental, lease or occupancy agreement or as licensee, invitee or otherwise, shall be and remain subject to the provisions of the Declaration, and the Articles of Incorporation, and these Bylaws and Rules and Regulations of the Association and this requirement shall be deemed to be a part of any implied, verbal or written agreement for rental, lease or occupancy, whether expressly stated or not. Enforcement against such person occupying a unit by, under or through a unit owner shall be the same as in the case of a unit owner, but nothing herein shall limit the right of the Association to pursue any remedy against the unit owner, the occupant or both, simultaneously, serially, or otherwise.

Section 4.

Right of Entry:

(a) An owner shall grant the right of entry to the management or to any other person authorized by the Board of Directors or Association in case of any emergency originating in or threatening his unit. Such grant is hereby deemed to have been given in the event that the owner is not present or available at the time of the emergency.

(b) An owner shall permit other owners, or their representatives, when so required, to enter his unit for the purpose of installing, altering or repairing the mechanical,

plumbing or electrical services, provided that requests for entry are made in advance and that such entry is at a time convenient to the owner. In case of an emergency, such right of entry shall be immediate.

(c) The Association shall have the right to grant permits, licenses and easements over the common area and facilities for utilities, roads and other purposes reasonably necessary or useful for the proper maintenance or operation for the project.

ARTICLE X

AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws may be amended in the following manner:

(1) Notice of Amendment to Bylaws: Notice of the subject matter of the proposed amendment shall be included in the notice of any meeting at which a proposed amendment is considered.

(2) Approval: A resolution adopting a proposed amendment may be offered by either a director or by any member of the Association. Directors and members not present in person or by proxy at the meetings considering the amendment may express their approval and favorable vote or disapproval and unfavorable vote in writing, providing such writing is delivered to the Secretary at or prior to the meeting. Except as elsewhere provided, approval of such resolution must be by at least 67% of the entire membership of the Board of Directors and by not less than 67% of the votes of all unit owners eligible to vote, and the approval of holders of first mortgages or deed of trust on units which in the aggregate have at least 51% of the votes of units owners.

(3) Prohibitions: No amendment shall discriminate against any unit owner or against any unit or class or group of units unless the unit owners so affected shall consent. No amendment shall significantly change any unit or parcel nor the share in the common elements appurtenant to it, nor increase the owner's relative share of the common elements appurtenant to it, nor increase the owner's relative share of the common expenses, nor change the relative voting rights of members, unless the record owner of the unit or parcel concerned and all record owners of liens thereon shall join in the execution of the amendment except as provided in the Articles of Incorporation and in Article IV of the Declaration of Condominium creating unit ownership.

(4) Recording: A copy of each amendment shall be certified by the President and Secretary of the Association


1300 1472

as having been duly adopted and shall be effective when recorded in the Public Records of New Hanover County, North Carolina.

The foregoing were adopted as the Bylaws of TIDES OWNERS ASSOCIATION, a corporation not for profit under the laws of the State of North Carolina, at the first meeting at the Board of Directors on the 15th day of August, 1985.


Secretary

APPROVED


President